## **Minutes**

# CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE



28 September 2016

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

### **Committee Members Present:**

Councillors Jane Palmer (Chairman), Peter Davis (In place of Nick Denys), Jem Duducu, Dominic Gilham, Becky Haggar, John Oswell, Jagjit Singh, Jan Sweeting (Labour Lead) and Tony Little

#### Also Present:

#### LBH Officers Present:

lan Anderson, Kate Boulter (Democratic Services Officer), Dan Kennedy (Head of Business Performance, Policy & Standards), Tom Murphy (Head of Early Intervention Services) and Nikki O'Halloran (Interim Senior Democratic Services Manager)

12. **APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE** (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies were received from Councillor Alan Kauffman, and from Councillor Nick Denys, who was substituted by Councillor Peter Davis.

13. **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING** (Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations of interest.

14. MATTERS NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 3)

There were none.

15. TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)

It was confirmed that all items were Part I and would be heard in public.

16. **TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14 JUNE 2016** (Agenda Item 5)

Members reported they had not received the percentage figures for spare capacity at primary and secondary schools which had been requested from officers at the last meeting.

It was noted that, as a result of the July 2016 meeting being cancelled, the Committee had not received the budget planning report scheduled for consideration at that meeting.

**RESOLVED:** That (1) the minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2016 be confirmed as an accurate record:

- (2) the percentage figures for spare capacity at primary and secondary schools in the Borough be circulated to the Committee; and
- (3) officers be requested to provide the budget planning report for consideration at the next meeting.

## 17. **REVIEW TOPICS FOR THE FIRST MAJOR REVIEW OF 2016/2017** (Agenda Item 6)

The Committee was asked to identify and agree a Major Review topic, to enable officers to develop a scoping report.

Officers proposed two topics for the Committee to consider. The first suggestion was in relation to the role of the Local Authority in academy schools. The role of the LA was changing with full details yet to be clarified. The LA would have less of a role in running school education, and an increased role for vulnerable and Looked After Children. The second suggestion was a review looking at the voice of the child and how it influenced decision-making and practice.

Members considered the merits of the two topics suggested, and discussed other possible review subjects. The following points were made in discussion:

- Reviews in recent years had focused on vulnerable children, which were extremely important but made up a relatively small percentage of children in the Borough. It would be useful to take a more general look at school performance and attainment this year.
- Elective Home Education (EHE) would not be a suitable review topic as it had been looked at by the Committee in 2011/12. However, officers were asked to provide an update report on EHE to the next meeting.
- Informal feedback from residents suggested they did not appreciate the relationship between LAs and academies and free schools. This topic would be a useful one to focus on in the major review.

The Committee having put the two suggested review topics to a vote, it was

**RESOLVED:** That (1) the major review topic would be 'The Council's current and future relationship with free schools and academies';

- (2) officers would produce a scoping report for consideration at the next meeting; and
- (3) an update report on EHE would be considered at the next meeting.

### 18. QUARTERLY SCHOOL PLACE PLANNING UPDATE (Agenda Item 7)

The Committee received an update on planning for primary and secondary school places in the Borough, following the annual refresh of the pupil places forecast.

Officers reported that it was a busy time of year for admissions and all children had been offered a place at a school. There had been a relatively high number of children

moving into the Borough. In the north of the Borough, the demand for additional school places was flattening. Ninety per cent of spare places were in three schools. The Council was pushing expansion of primary schools in the north of the Borough as signs were that extra capacity would be needed. In the south of the Borough, there was significant pressure in the Hayes area as a result of the planned residential developments in areas such as the Nestles site. It was forecast that Hayes would need a further 3-5 forms of entry which equated to a new school. Two new sixth form entry free schools had been announced in the Borough which would be in place September 2019 at the earliest. There had been an increase in admissions to independent schools which had released the pressure on other schools.

The Committee congratulated Council staff on their hard work securing school places for all children.

**RESOLVED:** That the report be noted.

# 19. COMPLAINT REPORT FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES FOR 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016 (Agenda Item 8)

The Committee provided an analysis of complaints and Member Enquires received in the year 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 for Children and Young People Services, including Education Services.

The Council had concentrated effort in resolving complaints informally to ensure swift resolution and prevent the need for escalation.

For Children and Young People Services, complaints dealt with informally had increased by 112% from 49 for 2014/15 to 104 for 2015/16. There had been 32 Stage 1 complaints which was an increase of 7% from 30 for 2014/15 to 32 for 2015/16. There were two Stage 2 complaints and no Stage 3 complaints. Five complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman, of which one was upheld, two were partially upheld, one was not upheld and one complaint was not investigated.

For Education and School complaints, there had been an increase of 35% for complaints resolved informally from 17 for 2014/15 to 23 for 2015/16. There had been 11 Stage 1 complaints which was an increase of 83% (5). There was one Stage 2 complaint and no Stage 3 complaints. Two complaints were referred to the Local Government Ombudsman, and neither were investigated.

Member Enquiries about Children and Young People Services rose by 5% from 51 in 2014/15 to 57 for 2015/16. Enquiries about Education Services rose by 65% from 32 for 2014/15 to 53 for 2015/16.

The Committee requested a breakdown of whether the increased number of complaints were low, medium or high level.

**RESOLVED:** That (1) the report be noted;

20.

(2) a breakdown of whether the increased number of complaints were low, medium or high level be circulated to Members.

# MINOR REVIEW - SUPPORTING EDUCATIONAL ASPIRATION FOR DISADVANTAGED CHILDREN (Agenda Item 9)

The Committee considered the draft final report and recommendations of the minor review 'Supporting educational aspiration for disadvantaged children'.

The following points were made in discussion:

- Members were very pleased with the quality and content of the report, and requested their thanks be passed to the report author, who had since left the Council's employment.
- The changing role of the Local Authority meant that some of the recommendations would benefit from rewording to reflect the current position.

**RESOLVED:** That (1) officer be requested to reword the recommendations to retain their meaning whilst better reflecting the changing role of the Local Authority;

(2) the amended report be presented to Cabinet.

### 21. **FORWARD PLAN 2016/2017** (Agenda Item 10)

**RESOLVED:** That the Forward Plan be noted.

## 22. **WORK PROGRAMME 2016/2017** (Agenda Item 11)

The Committee considered its Work Programme for the remainder of the 2016/17 Municipal year.

**RESOLVED:** That (1) the work programme be noted;

- (2) a report on the Government's Education Policy be added to the reports for the October meeting;
- (3) an update on Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services, and a budget planning report, also be considered at the October meeting.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.19 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Kate Boulter on 01895 556454. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.